
'·, 

~. ~~=r = [''J i'·-.- ---.~ .. 1 ~----.. ;.:::: .:,.~:::::. .:: UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

GENERAt. 
E/CN.4/Sub.l/SR.98 
~4 March 1952 

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH 
SOCIAL COUt\)CIL 

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS 
• SUB-COMMISSION ON FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND OF THE PRESS 

CONTENTS: 

Chairman: 

Fifth Session 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE NINETY-EIGHTH MEETING 

Held at Headquarters, Nevr York, 
on Tuesday, 11 March 1952, at 3 p.m. 

Draft international code of ethics (E/CN.4/Sub.l/151, 

E/CN.4/Sub.l/151/Add.l, E/CN.4/Sub.l/L.l0) (continued) 

AZMI Bey (Egypt) 

Rapporteur: Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) 

Members: Mr. BINDER (United States of America) 
Mr. P. H. CHANG (China) 

Mr. GERAUD (France) 

Mr. LOPEZ (Philippines) 

Mr. MOULIK (India) 

Mr. PLEIC (Yugoslavia) 

Mr. POLLERI CARRIO (Uruguay) 

Mr. WAITHli.AN (United Kingdom of Great Britain 
and Northern Ireland) 

Mr. ZONOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republicc) 

52-3703 



E/CN.4/Su~.l/SR.98 
Page '2 

, .. .. 

f ,;. .-' ' • \ -~ 

....... , 

F-::"'1r·zscntative of a specialized agency: 

Mr. CARNES United Nations Educational, • 
Scientific and Cultural Organiza~ 
tion (UNESCO) 

Re"?:-,...~c:-;t'tives of non-governmental organizations: 

Category. B: .. 

Mr. BEER International League for the 

·: \ 
. _,R;ghts of Man 

.On re~ister: . . ~ ' 

Mr. MOSS IN ·' ·International Federation of Free 
Journalists 

Secretariat: 

Mr. HUMPHREY Representative of the Secretary-
General 

Mr. EEK Secretary of the Sub-Commission 

DRAFT INTERNATIONAL CODE OF ETHICS (E/CN.4/Sub.l/1511 E/CN.4/Sub""l/151/Add.l 1 

E/CN.4/Sub.l/L.l0) (continued) . . 

The CHAIRMAN called for the discussion of article II, Paragraph 4, 
• 1 '" . 

of the draft internatio:Qal code of et~ics(E/CN,4/Sub.l/L.l0~ The amendments 
. l -

submitted by Mr. Mo~ik (E/CN.4/Sub.l/L.l0 1 pag~ 5) and Mr. Binder 

(E/CN.4/Sub.l/L.lO, page 6), although present~~ as substitutions, 

ought really to be proposed as additions, as they did not deal with the 

same sUbject as the original text. 

Mr. MOULIK explained that his amendment had originally been 

intended to be taken in· connexion Yith article I. His proposal about that 

article had not been adopted; thus, he was willing to regard his amendment 

as an addition to the original text. 

Mr. BINDER was prepared to let the vote be taken first on the 

proposal to delete the original text of paragraph 4 and then, if that text 

were retained, on his amendment as an addition. The original text was 

unnecessary, as no honest newspaper would publish unconfirmed news or give 

currency to rumour. The distinction to be made was rather th~.t' ·between news 

reports and expressions of opinion. Confusion of the two would mislead the 

reader, but the expression of opinion, clearly identified as su~L~ -dS very 

necessary to a newspaper. /The CHAIRMAN 



E/CN.4/Sub.l/SR.98 
Page ' · ·, 

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote Mr. Binder's proposal that paragraph 4 

of the original text should be de leta d. 

Thal proposal. was reJected by 5 votes ·to ;, with 2 ·abstentions • 

. Mr• WAITBMAN p:toposed tba.t.:only the first sentence of ·Mr. Binder's 

amepdmen:t .(E/CN .4/Sub.l/t.lO, page 6) ·should be retained• The remainder was' 

simply an,. el-aboration of the idea expres·sed therein. · Newspapers in which 

space was restricted had devised a new form ofreporting in which news and 

interpretation were combined. Such pieces were of course signed, and the 

interpret·~tive part was clearly introdueed as suchj ·but it could not be said 

that they were· free from opinions. Such reports might not, however, be cover~d 

by.the third sentenc~ 1 because they were not necessarily devoted to advocacy. · 

·· ~.ll". ·BINDER had not ex;pected opposition to his amendment and would not 

retain more tha.n the first sentence unless other members of ther Sub·Commission·~ 

wished the adoption of the entire text. 'The.phrasing had been derivedfrouitlie 

code of the American Society ·of Newspaper Editors. As the pieces to whfcli 

Mr.:Waitbma.n had referred We're Signed1 the:reader would not'take them for news 

reports. · United States newspapers usually made a clear distinction between the 

news columns and the editorial page; ·only a few were guilty of colouring news:' 

reports to create states of mind which they feared they could not create by 

editorials. 

Mr. LOPEZ suggested that the second :sentence ··in Mr. Binderts amendmEmt 

should be retained. It was most important that bias should be avoided. 

Mr. AZKOUL thought that the idea expressed in the first sentence·was 

rather platitudinous, but might be retained. It might be possible to require 

a· journalist to be free from bias and to publish things. cont~ary to his ow 
* . .' ' 

cherished ~liefs, but to require him to be free from opinions w~s un:realistic; 

the selection, presen:tation and context given to news reports ~er;,e,. i.n t}lemselvee 

tantamount to an expression of opinion. He would. therefore supp0r~ Mr., :-'"0it~n' s 

proposal. 

/V..r. GERAUD. 



E/CN.4/Sub.l/SR.$€ 

Pace 4 

Mr. GEAAUD did not believe that news could or should be clearly 

distinguished !rom opinion. There was an undesirable !arm o! journalism which 

twisted !acts to make them !it preconceived opinions; but there was an 

equally undesirable form which gave the bare facts without any explanation. 

'£he best. form of reporting was that in "''Thich the facts were set forth and the 

loeical conclusion drawn from them. From time to ti~ such conclusions should 

be revised and brought up to date. 

Mr. ZONOV would have accepted the inclu.sion of Mr. Binder' a ideas 

in an i~trument such as the draft convention on freedom of information, but 

thouGht them out of place in the code of ethics. The distinction between news 

and opinion had been thoroughly discussed during the debates on the draft 

convention. The Journalist could not be required to state facts. Without 

commenting on them; even the statement of a selected fact might to some 

extent be regarded as an expression of opinion. :Furthermore 1 he could not 

see how in practice the press could make the distinction between news and 

opinions nor who would make it -- the editor, the reporter or the public. The 

question could not be satisfactorily settled merely by placing news and 

editorial cor~nt on different pages of the newspaper. 

T:Q.e CHAJBH!\.N 1 speaking in his personal capacity, re:r.tla.rked that the 

world press was divided on the question of presentation of news and comments. 

Certainly comments. had to be based: on :t'acta; and he was inclined to favour 

the school to which Mr. Geraud beloneed. rather than Mr. Binder's.· He would, 

however 1 vote against Ivlr. Binder 1 s amendment for another reason: the amendment 

dealt with a matter of krofessional techni~ue rather than professional honour, 

and was therefore out of place in a code of ethics. 

}'Jr. LOPEZ was familiar with the idea expressed in the amendment; 

but there was a new trend in journalistic practice, followed by the United 

States press as well, of reporting and interpreting the news in the sam~ 

articll?.. He saw no reason to condemn that practice. 

Mr. BINDER replied that those were usually signed articles and 

readers were aware that they reflected the writer's personal views. His 

objection was to unsigned articles, purporting to be statements of facts, but 

colo-ure.d by the :prejudices o! those who controlled the periodical. 

/He could 



E/CN. 4/Sub .J./SR. 98 
Page 5 

lte Could:: not· agree that the question was technical. It w.s surely 

art ·ethical matter to r~:r.ra1n· .from disguising advocacy of a certain policy as 
. 1.:.->·: factual report~; :e.n.a. 'an injunction to that effect should certainly be 

. · included in the drttf·t code of ethics. 

Mr. GERAUD was not sa tiaf'ied. Y1 th Mr. Binder' e amendment. He would 

prefer a etatement to the effect that the reporting of~faets sliould never be 

coloured by:opinions, but that opinions should ·be based on the observation of 

facts; on ·that .premise, honest journalism should be a co ... ordina.tion of ·facts 

and opinions •. 

Mr. AZKOUL ramarked that Mr. Geraud. bad defeated his ovn purpose by 

voting for the deletion of the vord.s "and objective" in. article I, s1llce it 

nov appeaPed that .1le wanted newa reporting to be objective·. 

Mr. BINDEft, 1n order to expedite the Sub-Commission'~ vork, ·~greed. 
to reduce hie amendment to the first sentence, as suggested earlier'by 

Mr. Waithman •. · 

·.Mr. AZKOUL moved that, in order to make it clear that a moral 

obligation rather than professional technique was involved, the sentence should. 

be amended to read: "A clear distinction should be made between neva reports 

and expressions of opinion." 

That amen.dment was rejected by4 votel!l to Jt with 4 abstentions. 

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote Mr. Binder' s amendment 1. reading as 

follows: "Sound practice makes clear die tinction between news reports e.nd 

expressiori.a of opinion."· 

Mr. Binder's amendment was not adopted., 4 votes be1EB cast in favour 

and 4 age.inst, with 3 abstentions •. 

The CRAIBMAN directed a.tte.ntion. to Mr •. Maulik' s final amendment to · 

paragraph 4 of article II. 

/Mr. MOULIK 



E/CiJ.4-/Sub.l/SR.98 
Page 6 ·. · 

Mr. MOULIK stated that, in viev of the Sub·Commiseion•s rejection of 

his other &me!J.dments to article II, the final amendment for a.dd1tion to p&.'l"agl'&ph4 
*• ., 

should be redra.:f'ted to ree.d: "Speei8l. reetre.:lnt shall be exercised in repor'bl!lg 

and comnen.ting on ite:ma of infomation dealir.g with aitootions of teDSion arising 

:t'rom racial_, religious or eeoBOmie discriminations". 

Mr. LOPE:Z. recalled that V.r. Moulik' s 8ll1endment taken from the All-India 

Code 'Y<e.s e. very app~pria.te provision in view of the tense situation bet-ween 

India. Emd Pakistan. It voul.d not be universally a.pplicable because it vould 

call upon Journalists to refrain :t'rom vigorous reporting of cnses of racial 

discrimins.tion with a view to preventing violmce. Thus it might minimize 

publicity of incidents o:f' racial discrimina.tion and retard the work of eliminating 

discrimination of all kinds. 

Mr.., PLEIC stated that Mr. Moul.ik 1 s amendment vould hor.llper journalists 

in repor'Ung the facta of incidents at diser1m1.n&t1on. The best way to combat 

discrimination was to publicize the facts rather than to be s:Uent. 

The United Nations bad exerted great efforts to combat discrimination in 

various fields and many Member States had taken action to stigmatize intormation 

preaching discrimination. Mr. Moulik t s mnendment would be in conflict vi th 

action taken by other United Nations bod1es. 

Mr. MOULIK explained that his text had been misunderstood. The 

i~tention vas not to bar comment on incidents of discrimination, but to seek 

restrained comment tending to lessen rather than increase tension. The problem 

of tension arising from discrtmination wss not con~ined to India and Pakistan, 

but arose in many pQrts of the world. 

He was prepared to accept ametldments to cl.Srity the fact that the 

proVision would not prevent comment. 

Mr. WAITBMAN expressed sympathy with Mr. Moulik's objective but would 

be unable to support the proposal. The use of the word "restraint" was open to 

interpretations which would inevitably present difficulties. 

/Mr. LOPEZ 



Mr. LOPEZ understood Mr. Mo~'s motives, but e:tateq. ,tha~ a joUl"nallst'a 
.. ·. ~~' . . . . . . . 

report of . cases of dise:r:l,mi~tion 1rould depend on. the aim he eoog~,• In 
eertain circumatanees he might feel it essential_to ealm the populaee.and prevent 

violence while in others, althou6h he was in priaciple opposed to violence, he 

might feel compelled to arouse public opinion in order to seeure remedial 

action. In the final analysis permanat pee.ee vas impossible on tbe l:!asi~ of · 

racial or religious discrimination. 

· Mr. ZONOV vas 'qD.Sble to 8\ipport Mr. Mo~'s am•dment;. it Z'flieed: 
issues siniil..er to those b.e himself' :J.ad ra.lsed., ~ut vii.s presented. 'improperly. 

A dif'f'ereo.t orlemtati01!. wae IMee88\W7 ~Mid diserimiGS.tioa must . 'be. dealt with on 

M1". Mou1ik i a amend:meilt w,~;~· r~J~ bz '5 vot~ to S,t . Y1 t!l. 6 abste&·tiont~. 
. . ' ·, - . . . ' .. 

Tb.e a!AIRMAN ee.lled tor a vote oo srtiele II ~. ~ lN}?Jeot 

to stylf'sti~ · e&inges : 
.: 

"1. Fidelity to the ~lie iata-est is vitaJ. to a high 

atande.rd of prof'es#ional. conduat. The seeking of. perconal advantage 
' . . ····" :. ' 

and the pro!l'Dtion of e.ny private intereat eo~tre.:ry to the general 
' ~ ' 

velfa.re, for 'Vi:late-rer· reason; is not eOlllPatfble with such 

professioaal Qonduct. 

n::!... Delib,~~~e _c;aJ.:umby,· .i!lar.ldei-7 libel, unfo1lhlded accusations 

e.Bd :pl.agiarism e.re serio'UIJ prof"esaioncU. offences,. 

n:3. Good faith vith the reader is the foundation of' all 

jo~im worthy of the name. Any published information 'Wh1eh 

is found to be ba:rm:t'ul.ly' :f:oa.omn-a.te should. be apontaneeou.l.y 8!ld. 

~iately rectified. 

"4. Rumour and ur.aontirmed nevs tJhall. be treated and. identified 

as eueh.n 

Art.i~e II e..a ~. vsa ado:z.ted, "b;'!_ 7 ,TOt!§ to,no-::'le, vlth 

4 ~Ulne. 
/Mr. MOULIK 



E/CN.4/Sub.l/SR.,S 
Page 8 

~. MOULIK proposed that the Su"b..Commiesio~& set a target date tor 
the eompletioa of work on the code of ethics. Be augseated thc.t the t10de 

should be completed the fol.l.o'vi!:.g day. 

l<lr. ZONOV felt tbQ.t 8't\e~ & liXIlitatioo vould be U&vige in. viev of the 

Sub-Commieaion1 a m~date. 

M:r. LOPEZ suggested that, without ndopting a rigid dewiaion, the 

Sub-Commi sa ion might Get the follO'W'ing afternoon as a. goal tove:cd whieh to vork. 

M:r. :anmm eta. ted that, if the Su"-Commiasion ep~t an undue time on 

the (.."'de, it would 'be 'Ul.ln'tle to eomplete the other t&ske 11."hieb 1 t bad been 

in:Jtrueted to perform a.nd vhioh wezee equally importaz1t. Altbough the eode 

had beeu given priority, the Su'b-Commieeion he.d yet to decl 'Hith the vit€.1 

queationa of obataeleft to the free flow of information sud reeommendations for 

future work in the field of' f:reedom o"f ir.:forrnation. 

Every attempt should 'be made to exped.i te wo-:s.-k: on the code and to 

complete 1 t 1 if possible, by 'the following afternoon. 

M:fl. AZKOUL moved sdjournment of the meeting. 

f1:1e motioo. fgr adjoununent was ~do~ted. 'Oy 6 YOtes to 1, Yith 

2 abstentions. 

24./3 p.m. 




